INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

Chembond Material Technologies Private Limited

1.  Opinion

Material Technologies Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprlaes the Da[ance
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss/ (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in equity and the Cashy Flow Statement
far the year then ended, and nntes to the financial statements, mr‘ludang A‘summary nt
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory mformatlon

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accordlng to the explanatlons given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the informafi iop’ tequirad by the Companies
Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so reqwred and glye atrue and fair view in conformlty

Company as at March 31, 2023, its prnflt total rnmprnhenslve income, hanges in equity
and its Cash Flows for the year ended on’ that date

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accor ancc Wlth the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companles Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further descnbed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
standalone Finangial: Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Companty in accordarie, wnth the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of" India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant W our audil
of the standalone fipancial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules. thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance wlth these reqUIrements and the Code of Ethics. We belleve that the audlt

3. Mén'égement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
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records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparlng the standalone financial statements, management is respons:ble for
assessing the Company s ability to contlnue asa gomg concern, dlsclosrng, as applldable
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease»Operat:'edhs or has no
realistic altarnative but to do so. h

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseelng the companys financial
reporting process. ; ;

Auditor's Responsibllity foritherauditef the:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that: 1ncludes our oplmon Reasonable assurance

arise from fraud or error and; areacdnsndered material if, |nd|vrdually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected 107 influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone f nancial statements.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due o fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
rrsks and iobtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

<0ur oplrnon The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
_higher“than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
i, mtenhonal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° ;;_Obtaln an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
‘procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the fi nano|al statements
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements” represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fajr preseqtatlon

-/ % ‘1:;:-
Materlalrty is the magnltude of mlsstatements in the standalone fmancral statements that,

scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of U work "and (u) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone fmanmal statements.

significant deficiencies in internal control"that werglenhfy during our audlt

We also provide those charged wlth governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements 1 garding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other‘matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on Our

independence, and where appl;cable,,related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A) As required: by the L,ompanles (Audltors Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), i1ssusd
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we'give.in thé "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order.

a We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
#0of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.



d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standard (IND AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31,
2023 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls overfmanc:al reportlng
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls;" refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodlf ed’ ‘ppinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company s internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements P :

g. With respect to the other matters to be included #i™ the Audltors Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and: Audltors) Rules, 2014 |n our
opinion and to the best of our information and accordmg to_
to us: 4

ii. In our opinion and as per the. mformat:ep and explanations provided to us the
Company has not entered tnto any long- term contracts lncludmg derlvatlve

iii. There has been ng’ delay ln«transfemng amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Educatlon and Protection Fund by the Company.

bellef as dlsclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds have been advanced
or Ioaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or.kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
‘_entlty(les) mcludlng foreign entities (“intermediaries”), with the understanding,
.. Whether‘recorded in wntlng or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, directly or

2 "-i:-zndlrectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
. .z, Whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
7 any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c ) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
sppropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under iv (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend duting the year,

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
booke of account ueing accountmg eoftware which hae a feature of.racording
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1,
2023, and accordlngly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Compames (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year;ended March 31,
2023.

P b
e W, .:.

Dhiren P. Talati: Partner
Membership No: F/41867

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th May, 2023




"Annoxura A" to tha Indepandant Auditora' Report

The Annexure Referred to in paragraph 5A of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date
to the members of Chembond Material Technologies Private Limited on the Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

1)

2)

3)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
:f‘“"?-::
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, of.jntangrble
Assets. , %

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of 1ts Prcperty, Plant
and Equipment by which Property, Plant and Equipment are vernfled in‘a. phased manner
over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme certarn ‘Property, Plant
and Eguipmenl were verilied during the year and no mateual dtsqrepalﬁpres were noticed
on such verification. %

(c) According to the information and explanations gl,yen te U "r'and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the trtle deeds of immovable properties

‘_.

(d) According to the information and explanatjons gr\fen to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the .company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment or rntanglbieassets during the year under consideration.

(e) According to the informatior an .,egcplanatlons given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of. the 'ompany, No proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company fofzholding any Benami Property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohlbmcns) Act 1988 and Rules made thereunder.

(@) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals and ireour opmlcn the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropnate As informed to us, discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each ctass of Inventory on physrcal verification of the inventory as

.__,.-'---r_j‘r.—rulll|1[u " n[ Ui v bs 0l e Connprany, e Connpany, oning any paaind af livose af (e
-+ year, has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in

:1r:']grcf]:1i-fv, from hanks ar financial institutinns on tha haris of racinty of clirrant arrats

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year under consideration the
Company has not made investments in, provided any guaraniee or securily or granled
any Loans or advances in the nature of loans, Secured or Unsecured. to Companies,
Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any Other Parties. Therefore, the provisions of
clauss 3(lli)(a) to I(l)(f) of the Order are nol applicable o the Company.



4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

The company has not given loans, made investments, given guarantees and provided
securities covered by provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, clause 3(iv) of the aforesaid Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companues
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 are not applicable.

On the basis of explanation and representation given by the management and on our
broad review of the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant'?to’the Companies
(cost records and audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Centrat GOVernment under
Section 148(1) of the Act, we are of the opinion that prima, facse the prescnbed cost
records have been made and maintained. We have, however’ not%made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determlne Wwhe ther‘they are accurate or
complete. &

(a) According to information and explanations. g_' “fo=as and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and récords, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory “dues including Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, lncome Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value: added TaX, Cess and other statutory dues as
applicable with the appropriate authontles

> "‘:\'S.

xplanatlons given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the aboue werefm arrears as on the last day of the financial year
concerned for a perlod of more tban six months from the date they become payable.

company exam[ned by us"‘“’there are no Statutory dues of Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund? Emp[oyees State Insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues which
have not been' eposned on account of any dispute.

_‘__:.,-.__-examlned ‘by us, the Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the books
7 of:account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the Tax

as';agssments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or any other lender.

P e



10)

11)

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

(d) Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information and explanations given
to us and the records of the company examined by us, the funds raised on short term
hasis have not been utilized for long term purpeses.

(e) Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information and explanat;ons given
to Us and the records of the company examinad by us, the Company has"ﬁbt taueri any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obllgatlons of its subs&dlarles
associates or joint ventures. i e, %

(f) Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information® and explanatrons given
to us and the records of the company examined by us, the Gom;aaany has not raised any
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its Subsi Iaj'leS joint ventures or
associate companies. £ e,

A .'-'- e
e

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed; #the infarmation and explanations given
to us and the records of the company examined: by“ys, the company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further publsc offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, the prowsrons “iof clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company. i 4 b4

A Na:-u,
'-‘-

(b) Based upon the audit proc/edures perfprmed and the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examinatlon of the records of the company, the company
has not made any preferent!al a‘llotment or prlvate placement of shares or convertrble

provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

(a) Based upon. the udit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given to us, and ‘based-on our examination of the records of the company, no material
fraud by the Company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

......

(b) No: repert under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
by-the “auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and

_Aumfnrq) Rrilon, 2014 with tha Gantral Gavarnmant, during tho yaar and up to the date of

"""‘thls repcrt in respect of any fraud against the Company by its officers or employees.

12)

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.



13)

14)

15)

16)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian
Accounting Standards.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal
audit system and is also not required to have an internal audit system as per sectlon 138
of the Companies Act 2013. £
i %
(b) In view of the above, the provisions of clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order are not appllcable
to the Company.

e,

A,

':ib,
"5’ -.~ "::'r.

to us and based on our examination of the records of the company,, the .ccompany has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors, or# persons connected with its
directors. Accordingly, the provisions of section 192 af The Companles Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company. @ %

(a) Based upon the audit procedures perfqrﬁed'éﬁd"the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examination; of”l;he records of the company, in our opinion,
the company is not required to be reglstered und\er section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. :;;. Ay,

e
‘-.;.-

given to us and based on oug. examinaﬁon of the records of the company, in our opinion,
the company has not conducted anyj\lon-Banklng Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per
the Reserve Bank of Indla:=Act 1934,

(c) Based upon the audlt procedures performed and the information and explanations
given to us and’based:on‘our examination of the records of the company, in our opinion,
the compariy.is not: :a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
glven {0 Us-and based on our examination of the records of the company, the group does

-.:i"-:-'not have any Core Investment Company (CIC).

17)

18)

Bas".ed upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the Company has
neither incurred cash losses during the year under consideration nor in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.



10)

20)

21)

Place: Mumbai i
Date: 13t May, 2023

ety

Nooording to tho information and oxplanationc givon to uc and on the bacic of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance thaf aII llabmtles
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, wn!lget dtscharged by
the company as and when they fall due. 5

{.':?' “ ]
G Ty S
/) : ‘: Haas

In our Opinion, the provisions of section 135 are not apphcable ‘40 the Company.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the order are nbt appll¢ablé 10 the Companhy.

In our Opinion, provisions for Consolidated Financial Stlatements are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause; dfxxu}mf the order are not applicable to
the Company. P Ry,

s
E

For M/s Kastury & Talati
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 104908W

Dhiren P. Talati: Partner
Membership No: F/41867




"Annexure B" to the Independent Auditors' Report

The Annexure Referred to in paragraph 5B(f) of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date
to the members of Chembond Material Technologies Private Limited on the Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") -
,:, '.“C-
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Chembond Materla[
Technologies Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunctlon W|th our

audit of the Financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that d te

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and malntalnmg internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reportmg cn;er;a -established by the
Company considering the essential components of internalicontrof:stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Fmancual Repomng issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These% respen3|b|[|t|es include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate mterna] financial controls that were operating
effectlvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient €onduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, theapreventlon and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accountlng records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as reqw(ed/'- er the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an oplmon on the Company's internal financial controls over
flnan0|al reporting based on qur_audlt We conducted our audlt in accordance W|th the
Note") and the Standards Qn Audltlng, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) ©of the Companles Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls: both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of: :Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that" we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable;assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ali
matenal respects

Our audlt involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit avidence we have obtained is sufficicnt and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meanling of Internal Financlal Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting is a process desngned to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rellablllty of financial reporting and the preparatlcn of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted acccuntmg
principles. A company's milenal lnancial cunliul uvet linanclal tepurling ncludds ivse pulleles
and procedures that (1) pertaln to the malintenance of records that, In ?easonab!e detall,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assggs cf the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recordedfas necessary to permit
proputulion uf finunwiul stuterments In accordance with gengmlly acccpted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company arée: bemg made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors;:of the company. and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detectlcn of unatthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that coulcipa\fe a matenal effect on the financial
statements.

&

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Co'ﬁtF:fils ofé‘i’“lli'inancial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of mternai’ ’ﬁnanc1a| controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or: jmprpper ,management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud: may;,occ‘ﬂ'r'énd not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal fi nanmal,,ccn"frcjs oyer financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal fi r}anctai ccntrcl over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes |n ccndmons cr that the degree of compliance with the policies or

reporting., wete cperatmg effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal contro! over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal ccntrol stated in the Quidance Nole un Audit uf Inteinial Financial Cuniivls Over
Flnanclal Repcmng issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

.l".'_':"

For M/s Kastury & Talati
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regjstration No: 104908W

Place: Mumbai _ Dhiren P. Talati: Partner
Date: 13t May, 2023 Membership No: F/41867



Chembond Material Technologies Private Limited
(Erstwhile Protochem industries Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023

CIN U24200MH2000PTC 125231

| ASSETS

1

Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
i) Property, plant and equipment
ii) Capital work-in-progress
iii} Other intangible Assets
(b) Deferred tax assets (Net)
(c) Financial Assets
i)Other financial assets
Total Non - Current Assets

Current Assets

{a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets
i)Trade receivables
ii)Cash and cash equivalents
iiyOther bank balances
iv)Loans
v)Other financial assets

(c) Current Tax {Net)

(d) Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1

Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other equity

Total Equity

Non-Current Liabilities

Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i)Borrowings
ii)Trade payables
Trade payables -MSMED
Trade payables -Others
iii)Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
{c) Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements

Notes

WNNN

13
14

1-44

As at 31/03/2023

As al 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
340.40 367.54
16.89 0.00
441 6.84
162.22 29.33
1.31 1.31
525.24 405.02
1.185.20 1,191.69
3,423.76 2,820.89
103.58 226,52
104.20 114.72
40.25 20.87
3.27 1.66
0.00 6.78
101.67 71.50
4,961.93 4,454.63
5,487.16 4.859.65
151.50 151.50
817.87 38.46
969.37 189.96
1,190.68 1,368.02
210.78 341.48
2,672.28 2,720.15
1.28 4.88
117.44 4.20
325.34 230.97
4,517.79 4,669.69
5,487.16 4.859.65

As per our attached report of even date
For M/s Kastury & Talati

Chartered Accountants

Firm Refjistration Number : 104908W

Dhiren P Talati

Partner

Membership No: 41867
Place : Navi Mumbai.
Date: 13th May 2023

o CHARTERED

= ACCOUNTANTS

On behalf of Board of Directors

V-

Sameer V. Shah
Director
DIN:00105721

Place : Navi Mumbai.
Date: 13th May 2023

U7

Nirmal V. Shah
Director
DIN: 00083853




Chembond Material Technnolngies Private | imited
(Erstwhile Protochem Industries Private Limited)
3ldtetient Ul Prufit dnu LOSS tor tna qUAaRSar 8naad 318t March 2023

CIN U24200MH2000PTC125231 Notes
FY 2022-2023 FY 2021-2022
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)

! Revenue From Operations 20 13,400.88 9,838.81
Il Other Income 21 10.43 8.82
I Total Revenue (I+I1) 13,411.31 9,847.63
IV Exnenses
a) Cost of Materials Consumed 22 9,493.94 7,293.64

Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress
b) and Stock-in-Trade 23 123.37 - 00
c} Employee Benefits Expense 24 1,212.41 1,075.12
d}  Finanes Ganta % 170 27 Ny RI
e) Depreciation and Amortisation expense 26 30.26 29.08
f)  Other Fxpenszes 27 1,662 42 _1,231.50

Total Expenses 12,652.73 9,735.53
VvV Profit before Exceptional items and Tax 758.58 112.10
VI Exceptional ltems
VIl Profit before Tax 758.58 112.10
VIl Tax Expense

Current Tax 122 21 10.63

Deferred Tax -132.89 -12.92

Short/(Excess) provision of Income Tax of earlier years (net) -1.91

Total Tax Expense -12.59 -2.29
IX  Profit for the Year 771,17 114.40

X Other Comprehenshive Income

1 i) items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 8.23 9.66
ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

2 i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - =
ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -

Other Comprehensive Income (1+2) 8.23 9.66

Total Comprehensive Income (IX+X) 779.41 124.05
Xl Earning Per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 10 each 28

Basic (in Rs.) 50.90 7.55

Diluted (in Rs.}) 50,90 7.55

As per our attached report of even date
For M/s Kastury & Talati On behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Flun Regiluadon Nuibet . tuagvaw

Dhiren P Talati Samaear V. Shah Nirmal é Shah

Partner Nirertar Nirartnr
Membership No: 41867 DIN:00105721 DIN: 00083853
Place : Navi Mumbai. Place : Navi Mumbai.

Date: 13th May Date: 13th May 2023




Chembond Material Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
(Formerly known as Protochem industries Private Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2023

( All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Year ended 31st March, Year ended 31st Mar,
2023 2022
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net profit / (loss) before tax 758.58 112.10
Adjustments for: Depreciation and Amortization 30.26 29.08
Locs on uuly of Finad nnnaln 1.42 0.23
Finance Cost 129.32 127.19
161.01 156.50
Less: Foreign exchange fluctuation 2,39 403
Operating profit before working capital changes 921.98 272.63
Adjuctmonto for
Inventories 6.49 (269.78)
Trade and other receivables (662.96) (1,141.86)
Trade and other payables 43.88 1,382.68
Cash generated trom operating activities 309,38 243.67
Taxen pnid (11717) (1119)
MAT ¢ 8@l e vt oo g ating aebivilive ___ 102,31 232,147
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets (32.01) (60.81)
Proceeds from sale of fixed asset 12.99 2.25
Net cash used in investing activities (19.02) (58.56)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Finance Cost (129.32) (127.19)
Net increase / (decrease) in working capital barrowing (177.34) 70.02
Issue of Shares ( Cash recd from Capital increase) - -
Issue of Shares ( Cash recd from Share premium) = a
Net cash used in financing activities (306.65) (57.18)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C) (133.46) 116.74
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance
341.24 224.50
LdasH ana casn eguivalents - Llosing balance 20¢7.18 341.24
(D+E)
Components of Cash and cash equivalents:
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st Mar, 2022
Particulars
Cash and cash equivalents 103.58 226.52
Bank balances 104.20 114.72
Total 207.79 341.24

For M/s Kastury & Talati
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regjgtration Number : 104908W

.
Dhiren P Talati e
Partner //f/"/ TURY
Membership No: 41867 //.%" 3

Place : Navi Mumbai. !'flff:.?- CHARTERED j <
Date: 13th May 2023 {{= Accountants 3
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

CIN:U24200MH2000PTC125231

V-

Sameer V. Shah
Director
DIN:00105721

Nirmal V. Shah
Director
DIN: 00083853




Chembond Material Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

(Erstwhile Protochem Industries Private Limited)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2023

(a) Equity share capital for the year ended 31st March 2023

No. of Shares Amount
Balance as at 31st March 2022 15,15,000 1.51,50,000
Changes in Equity share capital due to prior period emors = -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period - -
Changes in equity share capital during the current year = -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 15.15,000 1,51,50,000
(a) Equity share capital for the year ended 31st March 2022

No. of Shares Amount
Balance as at 31st March 2021 15,15,000 1.51,50,000
Changas in Equity share capital due lo prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning ef the current reporting period -
Changes in equity share capital during the current year &
Balance as at 31 March 2022 15,15,000 1,51,80,000

(b) Other Equity for the year ended 31st March 2023

Amtin Rs Lakhs

Reserves and Surplus Statement of other comprehensive
Income
Securities Retained Remeasurements of Total other
Particulars General Reserve cemilum earnings/Profit | the net defined equi
) & Loss benefit Plans quity
Balance as at 31st March 2022 - 448 57 (400.76) (9.34) 38,46
Tota! Comprehensive
Profit for the year 77117 77117
Other comprehensive income for the year 8.23 8.23
Income Tax of Earlier Years
Transactions with owners of the company
Interim Cividend on Equity Shares
Interim Dividend Distribution Tax
Dividend on Equity Shares
Dividend Distribution Tax of earlier year
Premium on allotment of shares by way of right issue -
Transferred to General Reserve
Transferred from Retained Earnings
Balance as at 31st March 2023 = 448,57 370.41 (1.11) 817.87
(b) Other Equity for the year ended 31st March 2022 Amtin Rs L akhs
Reserves and Surplus Stat t of other comprehensive Income
Securities Retained Remeasurements of Total other
Particulars General Reserve remium earnings/Profit | the net defined equit
P & Loss benefit Plans quity
Balance as at 31st March 2021 - 448,57 (515.16) (19.00) (B5.59)
Total Comprehensive
Profit for the year 114.40 114.40
Other comprehensive income for the year 9.66 9.66
Income Tax of Earlier Years
Transactions with owners of the company
Interim Dividend on Equity Shares
Interim Dividend Distribution Tax
Dividend on Eguity Shares
Dividend Distribution Tax of earlier year
Premium on allotment of shares by way of right issue
Transferred to General Reserve
Transterred from Retained Eamings
Balance as at 31st March 2022 - 448,57 (400,76) (9.34) 38.46

As per our attached report of even date
For M/s Kastury & Talati

Chartegad Accountants

Firm istration Number : 104908W

Dhiren P Talati
Partner

Membership No: 41867
Place : Navi Mumbai.
Date: 13th May 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
CIN:U24200MH2000PTC 125231

N Y

Sameer V.-Shah
Director
DIN:00105721

Place : Navi Mumbai.
Date: 13th May 2023

Nirmal V. Shah

Directo

r

DIN: 00083853

lace : Navi Mumbai.
ate: 13th May 2023



Chembond Material Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
(Erstwhile Protochem Industries Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2023

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Chembond Material Technologies Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Private Limited company domiciled and incorporated in India under the Indian
Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is located at A/737/5 TTC Midc Indl.area, village Mahape, Navi Mumbai -400710

Chembond Material Technologies Pvt. Ltd. is a subsidiary of Chembond Chemicals Ltd

Chembond Material Technologies Pvt. Ltd., an ISO 9001:2008 certified company incorporated on 24th March, 2000.

Our product range includes specialty chemicals & lubricants such as corrosion inhibitors, heat treatment chemicals, quenching fluids & aerosol and non
ocrogol MO (Maintcnance Repair & Operation) pioducls. These aie widely demanded i varivus seululs like dulunioblles & dnclllales, consune
durables, furnilure, engineering, machinary & machine taols and cold forming., Apart from this we supply @ ldige quanium ol our products 1o
Guvernment underlakings such as Defense, Rallways, Marine & Aviation Industries.

We are also inlo inanulacluing & markeling uf lndusliial Crizgiies used In Teallle, Anlinal Feed, Dislllery, Leadigr, Aqud Hshety, wwingry,

Bio Fuels & Edible Oil industry, Probiotics used in Animal Health helping to maintain microflora in animal body.

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The Company has prepared financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) together with the comparative period data as
at and for the year ended March 31, 2021.

A Basis of Preparation, measurement and Transition to Ind AS
The financial statements of the Company are prepared in Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Statements are prepared under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below:

The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements except where a newly-
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

The financial statements are prepared in INR, which is the company’s functional currency and is rounded off to the nearest lakhs except
otherwise indicated.

B Use of Estimates
The preparation of Financial Statements is in conformity with Ind AS and requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent liabilities on the date of Financial Statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates can change from period to period. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes
in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made, and if material, their effects are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

a. Eatimation of taxca
b. Determination of the estimated useful lives of intangible assets and determining intangible assets having an indefinite useful life.

c. Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitalized

d. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions

e. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources
f. Fair value of financial instruments

Current and Non-current classification

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i.the asset/liability is expected to be realised/ settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

iL.the asset is intended for sale or consumption;

iii.the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iv.the asset/liability is expected to be realised/ settled within twelve months after the reporting period

v.the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting date;

vi.in the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting date.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
For the purpose of current / non-current classificalion of assets and Ilabllmes the Company has ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months

o CHARTERED T r'
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C Property, Plant and Equipment

Measurement at receanition:

Ao of proprly, planl eind squiprosal Uial gualifies as anasset ls ineasured i lnlllal tecuyrlion g0 eosy AN g o) PIOBENY, Bign 2na
vrplpanenl jEREy rilul rlitlies s vt wwan 19 MAagiEan AN INTALEACAGRITAR At fact kallesndg mbal gewabivig ey ol orogrly wlanl
And enuipment are rarried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmont locsog if any.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cost
which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of
the remalning Item.

The cast of an itam of praparty, plant and onquipmont comprises of its purchase price including tavea (other than thoze zubzaqusntly
recoverable from (ax aulhorilies), duties, freight and other directly attributable costs related to the acquisition or construction ot the
respective assets, Profit or Loss on disposal of tangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent Measurement:

Subsequent costs are included in the agget's carrying amount or recogniscd as a scparate assct, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged lo he Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Intangibie Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Profit or Loss on
disposal of intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Depreciation and Amorlizalion

Depreciation on PPE* (other than free hold and lease hold land) has been provided on Straight Line basis at the rates prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the primary period of lease.

Capital Work-in-progress

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognised.

D Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of the cost determined on weighted average basis or net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net
realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. Damaged, unserviceable and inert stocks are valued at net realizable value.

Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all
other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of materials,an appropriate allocation of overheads and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The company considers factors like estimated shelf life, product discontinuances and ageing of inventory in determining the provision for
slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable inventory and adjusts the inventory provisions to reflect the recoverable value of inventory.

E Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty
and net of returns, trade discount or rebates and applicable taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government and which are levied on

such sales.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probabie that future economic benefits
will flow tn the Campany

i. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of all significanl risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer as per terms of
Contract, usually on delivery of goods.

ii. Revenue from services is recognised pro-rata as and when services are rendered over a specified period of time, The company collects
BUNIWY LWL Juuyy uny ssriss wse i senait of the govcimment end thercluie il s aul an evunuinic berglit Huwly o e cutnpdny, Henee
it ie excluded from the rovonuo.

Interest Ineome Is recognised using effective Interest method oh time proportion basis taking in to account the amount outstanding.
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders

apprave the dividend

F Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupce ().
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted in the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of the transaction .Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at functional currency closing
rate of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetory assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated.

G Impairment of Assets
(i) Financial assets (other than at fair value})
The Company assesses at each date of Balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all
contract assets and/or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 monthExpEcte; dit losses or an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses
if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased sigfi itial recognition.

(i) Non-financial assets c_\q‘ CHARTERED T “
Tangible and intangible assets g = ACCOUNTANTS =1

Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset with finite lite érg -e;fé]uated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, If anjv\l_.:g’g Indicalign*exjéls, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individi %ﬁ-.igs&bnless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely




independent of those from other assets. in such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which
the assets belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

(iii} Financial assets

The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following:
i.Trade receivables

ii.Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables)

iii.Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance. In case of other assets (listed as (i) and (iii} above), the Company determines if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an
amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.

However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.
Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL

(iv)Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognises a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability.

Where the fair value of a financial liability at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the difference between the fair value
and the transaction price is recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is
determined through a quoted market price in an active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that
uses data from observable markets (i. e Ievel 2 |nput)

Subsequent measurement

Allfinancial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Under the effective interest method, the future cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value using the effective
interest rate, The cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and
the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial liability over the relevant
period of the financial liability to arrive at the amortised cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the amortisation under
effective interest method is recognised as interest expense over the relevant period of the financial liability. The same is included under
finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial

liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Retirement Benefits :

(a) Short term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and they
are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of
short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Post Employment Benefits

I. Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plans are employee state insurance scheme and Government administered pension fund scheme for all applicable
employees and superannuation scheme for eligible employees,

Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans:

The Company recognizes contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
employees render services to the Company during the reporting period. If the contributions payable for services received from employees
before the reporting date exceeds the contributions already paid, the deficit payable is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the reporting date, the
excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash
refund.

Il. Defined Benefit plans:

Provident Fund scheme

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund scheme in accordance with the statutory provisions
Gratuity scheme

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees, The Company contributes to a separate entity (a fund) administered
by LIC, towards meeting the Gratuity obligation.

Pension Scheme:

The Company operates a defined benefit pension plan for certain specified employees and is payable upon the employee satisfying certain
conditions, as approved by the Board of Directors.

Recognition and measurement of Defined Benefit plans:

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at
each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit
obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit obligations
resulting from this calculation) is recognized representing the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to

the plan.

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest on the defined benefit liability / (asset) are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasuremenis, oi=the efined benefit liability

/ (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return gie 8|S (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/asset), are recognized in Other Compfehersi : uch remeasurements are not reclassified to the

Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods. |/ |
The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current &
independent actuary; however, the entire liability towards l’i
the gratuity fund within the next twelve months.




Other Long Term Employee Benefits:
The Company does not allow any accumulation of leavebalance or encashment thereof.

Provision For Current & Deferred Tax
Income tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax expense and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in OCI, in which case, the tax is also recognised in directly in equity or OCI

respectively.

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax
payable or recoverable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period.Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax
Deferred Income Tax is recognised using the Balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for

deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and their carrying amount, except when the deferred
income tax arisies from the initial recognition of an assets or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the exent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which the temporary differences are expected to be received or settled.

Dulurrad (ax axsels and liahililies are affset when they relate to income taxes levied by the saime laxalion authority and tho rolovant ontity
intends to setties its currenl lax assels and liabililies on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future
economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax
asset in the Balance sheet when the asset can be mecasured reliably and it 1s probable that the tuture economic benefit associated with the
asset will be realised.

The Company recognises interest levied and penalties related to income tax assessments in finance costs.

Earnings Per Share :

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loco attributable to cquity sharcholders of the Gompany by the weighted averaye number of eyuily shaigs vutslarding duriny he
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which includes all stock options granted to employees.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits
and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets :

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabiiity is disclosed for,
(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or
(i) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation

or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made
Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

Dividend distribution to equity shareholders
Dividend to equity shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved by the equity shareholders.

Interim dividends that are declared by the Board of Directors without the need for equity shareholders' approvals are recognised as a
liability and deducted from shareholders' equity in the year in which dividends are declared by the Board of directors.

Lease Accounting
A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Company as a lessee

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised i in proflt or loss as fmance costs unless they are dlrectly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in age -I"-’:*"*"-h A

costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods
Operating lease payments are generally recognised as an expenss dglhqﬁﬂ;ﬁfmt}loﬁ [
the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected ) 'R*C’UU‘W f
increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which su enefits Eccrue
also recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incu




Company a3 a lessor

Rental Income fiom operaling lease is generally recngnised an 2 straight-line bacic ever the torm of tho ralovant loaco. Whoro tho rontala
are slruclured sullly W neives i line willi eapecled yeierdl nflalun U LUNIPEISELE (U1 HHE CUHPEIY $ BRPECEY ITALSHATY G5t
naroanan, nunh norcanen are recagnived i ke peon iocdic leson by bepefite dusiae, Tidal s wonde g o Ty qeet aninging

an uperallng lease dre added o the carrylng amount of the I¢ased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Trade Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior o the end of financlal year which are unpaid.
The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve
months after the reparting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value.

onte
Finacial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and liahlities are initially measured at fair value. Transacion costa that are diroctly attributable to the acquisition or iasuc of financial
assets and financial liabilities ( other than financial assets and finacial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value measured on initial recognition of finanvial assets or financial liability.

Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the difference between the fair value and the transaction
price is recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in
an active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference between the fair value and transaction price is
deferred appropriately and recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change
in factor that market participants take into account when pricing the financial asset.

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price,

Subsequent measurement

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria:
i.The Company’s business model! for managing the financial asset and

ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
i.Financial assets measured at amortised cost

ii.Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

iii.Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

i.Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the Company. Such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost.
i. Financial assets measured at FVTOC!:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

A Tl gy Busitys s todul wbjuctbas Tor monnging tha finanaink naant in anntnven isth by callzzting controctudl coah Hovwa and aellivgg e Gl
assets, and
) The eanteactial trmy of W lindivial asael yive 1w Uil ewsuiliod Uale (o udtd) Tuws TR SORIY PIYIMEOED A0 OARITHAEAND (TTAFASE AR ThA RHAGAA

amount outstanding.

This category applies to certain investments in debt instruments Such finanrial assets are subsequently measured at fair valua at aach ranarting datn Fair
value changes are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Incume (OCI). However, the Company recognises interest income and imparment insses and
its reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Orn Derecognilion of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in ()Cl is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and
Loss.Further,the Company, through an irrevocable election at initial recognition, has measured certain investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI. The
Company has made such election on an instrument by instrument basis. These equity instruments are neither held for trading nor are contingent
consideration recognised under a business combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable clection, subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity
instruments are recognised in OCI. However, the Company recognises dividend income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount can be measured reliably.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is not reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Further, the Company, through an irrevocable election at initial recognition, has measured certain investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI. The
Company has made such election on an instrument by instrument basis. These equity instruments are neither held for trading nor are contingent
consideration recognised under a business combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable election, subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity
instruments are recognised in OCI. However, the Company re ises dividend income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
right to receive payment is established, it is probable tha j

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative
Loss. However, the Company may transfer such cu
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A tinancial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it 1s measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as explained above. This is a residual category applied to all
other investments of the Company excluding investments in subsidiary and associate companies. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value &b apah ranartina datn, [ airealin shanaan ara ranagnined in thes Gfatement of Deafit ol Do

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value and having origina! maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash
equivalents, Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequentlymeasure at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold

these assets 1o collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

The company has made an irrevocable election to present in ather comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of equity
Investments not held tor trading.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs:

i. The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

ii. The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially transferred all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

ili. The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows without
material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement (thereby substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset);

iv. The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the financial
asset.

In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial asset, but retains
control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognise such financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the
financial asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The financial asset and the associated liability are

measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in (i) above for financial assets measured at FVTOCI), the difference between

the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Chtivmbond Matorial Tochnologles Private Limited
(Erstwhile Protochem Industries Private Limited)
Notes on Fiancial Statements tor the year ended 31st March, 2023

DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)

Deferred tax Asset
Gratuity
MAT Credit
Provision for Doubtful Debts

Deferred tax Liability
Depreciation

Net Deferred Tax Asset Total

UIHER FINANCUIAL ASSETS
(Unsecured & considered good)

Other Deposits
Total

INVENTORIES
(At lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)

Raw Material
Packing Material
Finished Goods

Stock-in-Trade
Total

TRADE RECEIVABLES
{Unsecured)
Unsecured Considered Good
Unsecured Considered doubtful
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts
Total

a  For Related party transactions Refer Note No.40

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks
In Current Accounts
Cash on hand

Total

OTHER BANK BALANCES

Margin money (Including deposits with orginal maturity of more than 3 months)
Total

LOANS

{Unsecured & considered good)
Loan and advance to Employees
Other Loans & Advances

Total

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Unsecured & considered good)

Security Deposits

Total

CURRENT TAX (NET)
Current Tax (Net)

@ CHARTERED ©
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Total

As at 210372023

Ar at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)

2.30 3.16

151.71 29.50

36.57 30.12

190.59 62.77

28.37 33.44

28.37 33.44

162.22 29.33

As at 31/03/2023
(Rs. In lakhs)

As al 31/0/2022
(Rs. In lakhs)

1.31

1.31

1.31

1.31

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
781.10 671.09
50.53 57.29
243.02 359.63
110.54 103.67
1,185.20 1,191.69

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
3,423.76 2,820.89
140.67 115.84
140.67 115.84
3.423.76 2.820.89

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
103.41 226.41
0.18 0.11
103.58 226.52

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
104.20 114.72
104.20 114.72

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
8.10 11.21
32,15 9.66
40.25 20.87

As at 31/03/2023
(Rs. In lakhs)

As at 31/03/2022
{Rs. In lakhs)

3.27

1.66

3.27

1.66

As at 31/03/2023
{Rs. In lakhs)

As at 31/03/2022
(Rs. In lakhs)
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Advances for supply of goods and services

Balances with government authorities
Other Current Assets

SHARF CAPITAL

Authorised
20,00,000 (P.Y. 20,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Issued, 3ubsuilbed and Pald up
15,15,000 (P.Y. 15,15,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully
paid up

a  Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and

al the end of the reporting year:

Nurubet ul shaies vulslanding al e beghining of the year
Additions during the year

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year

b Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares
Name of the Shareholder

Chembond Chemicals Limited (Holding Co.)
% held

Shareholding of Chembond Chemicals Limited includes 6 shares held by individuals as nominees of the Company.

¢ Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Total

Total

HEHE A AR

As AT VTR Y

(Ba.Inlakhs) {135 In lakhs)
10.01 9.21
87.35 27.94
0.00 34,29
4.31 -
101.67 71.50

Arial 310372003

An ot 21/03/2022

{F.c. In lakhc) _ {Ro. Intukhy)
200.00 200.00
151.50 151.50
151.50 151.50
15,15,00U 15,15,000
15,15,000 15,15,000

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

No of Shares No of Shares
15,15,000 15,15,000
100.00% 100.00%

Shares held by promoter at the end of the year

Sr. Promoter Name No. of % of total| % change during the
No shares shares year

1|Chembond Chemicals Limited 15,14,994 100%

2|Sameer V. Shah Jointly Shilpa S. Shah* 1 0%

3|Nirmal V. Shah Jointly Mamta N. Shah* 1 0%

4|Padma V. Shah* 1 0% No Change

5|Shilpa S. Shah Jointly Sameer V. Shah* 1 0%

6/Mamta N. Shah Jointly Nirmal V. Shah* 1 0%

+[Rashil &, Guvll’ 1 0%

* Nominee shareholders of Chembond Chemicals Limited
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
% change during the
Shares held by promoter at the end of the year year

Sr. Promoter Name No. of % of total
No, shares shares

1|Chembond Chemicals Limited 15,14,994 100%

2|Sameer V. Shah Jointly Shilpa S. Shah* 1 0%

3|Nirmal V. Shah Jointly Mamta N, Shah* 1 0%

4|Padma V. Shat’ 1 0% No Change

Al5Rpe T Sihal el DA WO 3hal” | [

6|Mamta N. Shah Jaintly Nirmal V. Shah* 1 0%

7|Rashmi S. Gavli* 1 0%

* Nomince sharcholders of Chembond Chemicals Limited

d  Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each hoider of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution.will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

A
¢ During the Previous year under consideration the equit§/sh? mi of the com ik have been subdivided from the earlier face value of Rs.10/4
per share to the present face value of Rs.5/- per sha © CHARTERED ‘;
= ACCOUNTANTS 7))
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OTHER EQUITY

Share Premium

As per {ast year
Add:Premium on allotment of shares by way of right issue

Retained Earnings
As per last year
Add: Profit for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit Plans
As per last year

Movement During the Year

CURRENT BORROWINGS
(Repayable on demand)

Secured
Working Capital Loan from Banks

Unsecured
Loans from Related Parties

For Related party transactions Refer Note No.36
Working capital loan is secured by charge on Stock & Debtors.

TRADE PAYABLES

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Others

For Related party transaction Refer Note No,36

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
448.57 448.57
0.00 0.00
448.57 448.57
(400.76) (515.16)
771.17 114.40
370.41 (400.76)
(9.34) (19.00)
8.23 9.66
(1.11) (9.34)
Total 817.87 38.46

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
40.68 80.02
1,150.00 1,288.00
Total 1,190.68 1.368.02

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
210.78 341.48
2,672.28 2,720.15
Total 2.883.06 3.061.63

The Company has amounts due to suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) as at

the year end. The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under:

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
on the above amount

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the
appointed day, during the year

Interest paid/adjusted to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
(other than section 16)

Interest paid/adjusted lo suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
for paymente already madu

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year
to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006

As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
(Rs. In fakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
210.78 341.48
0.33 1.65
0.33 1.65

The information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Fnterprises has heen determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAI LIABILITIES
Creditors for Capital Expenditure
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As at 31/03/2023
(Re. In lakhs)

As at 31/03/2022
(Rs. In laklss)

1.28

4.88

Total 1.28

4.88

Ac at 31/03/2023
{Ho. In lakha}

Aa at 31/03/2022
{143, In lakhs}

11.31
106.12

Total 117.44
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SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Employee Benefits Payabie

Provision for Current Tax (Net of Advance Tax)

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Revenue from Sale of products
Sale of goods
Sub total- (i)

Revenue from Sale of services
Technical Service Income
Sub total- (ii)

Other Operating revenues
Miscelianeous Income

Sub total- (jii)

Total revenue from operations (i+ii-+iii)

For Related party transactions Refer Note No.36
OTHER INCOME

Gross Interest {TDS Rs. 0.57 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.0.35 lakhs)}

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss/ (Gain)
Miscellaneous Income

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars of Raw Materials Consumed
Raw Materials Consumed
Packing Material

For Related party transactions Refer Note No.36

CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN

PROGRESS AND TRADED GOODS

a) Finished products/ Stock in Trade (At Close)
Finished Products

b) Finished products/ Stock in Trade (At commencement)
Finished products

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries & Wages
Contribution to Provident & other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

For Related party transaction Refer Note No.36
FINANCE COST

Interest Expense

- Banks

- MSMED

- Others

Bank Guarantee fees & charges

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
8.86 12.14
311.73 208.65
4.74 10.18
Total 325.34 230.97

FY 2022-2023

FY 2021-2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)

13.390.17 9,834.95
13,390.17 9,834.95
(0.00)

(0.00)

10.72 3.85

10.72 3.85

Total 13.400.88 9,838.81

FY 2022-2023

FY 2021-2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
5.49 6.24
0.00 0.00
4.94 2.59
Total 10.43 8.82

FY 2022-2023

FY 2021-2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
8,825.17 6,801.80
668.77 491.85
Total 9.493.94 7.293.64

FY 2022-2023

FY 2021-2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
185.38 308.75
308.75 287.75
Total 123.37 (21.00)

FY 2022-2023

FY 2021-2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
1,125.84 1,003.12
59.97 53.87
26.60 18.13
Total 1,212.41 1,075.12

FY 2022-2023

FY 2021-2022

(Rs. In lakhs) {Rs. In lakhs)
10.32 6.27
0.33 1.65
115.62 116,74
3.04 2.53
Total 129.32 12719




26

27

28

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Nepreciation and Amaortigation Expangag

OTHER EXPENSES

MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Consumable stores

Fower, Fual & Walur Churyus

Research and Developnienl

Repairs and Renewals to Plant & Machinery
Godown Rent

Labour Charges

Security Expenses

Factory Maintenance

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Director's Sitting Fees

Rates & Taxes

Printing and stationary

Telephone & Postage Expenses
Insurance

Motor car expenses

Auditors Remuneration

Legal, Professional & consultancy fees
Repairs & Maintenance Buildings
Repairs & Maintenance Others
Miscellaneous expenses

Donation

Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset

Loss by Fire

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Input GST Disallowed

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss/ (Gain)
Bad Debts Written Off

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Carriage outwards

Commission on sales

Travelling Expenses

Conveyance expenses

Royalty Expenses

Advertising & Puhlicity Fxpenses
Warehousing Charges

Sales Promotion Expenses

Audilur'y Rumuneratian annalses of!

Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Taxation and Other Matters

For Related party transactions Refer Note No.36

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net Profit available to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In Lakhs)
Total number of Equity Shares (Face value of Rs. 10/- gaf
Weighted No. of Equity Shares /
Basic Earnings per Share (in Rupees)
Diluted No. of Equity Shares

Diluted Earnings per Share (in Rupees)

(& CHARTERED
= ACCOUNTANTS

¥

FY 2022-2023

FY 2021-2022

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
20.26 20.00
Total 30.26 29.08
FY 2022-2023 FY 2021-2022
(Rs. In lakhs) (Ry, i laghlig)
15.06 9.91
L2, 38.81
12.84 8.44
21.94 15.21
39.82 13.24
3473 23.70
12 R7 4.36
6.38 6.74
A 196.34 120.22
0.90 0.90
2.13 5.54
2.65 2.09
7.80 7.99
12.65 9.13
36.26 30.85
3.33 2.89
160.34 184.39
0.32 3.37
27.80 14.69
26.82 12.45
0.00 0.00
1.43 0.23
34.28 0.00
24.83 30.47
27.67 10.08
2.39 4.03
3.46 2.77
B 375.06 321.88
488.86 363.20
338.10 233.74
107.20 68.94
66.29 48.30
32.43 27.56
1.46 0.01
9.73 7.07
47,96 39.69
c 1,092.02 789.40
Total 1,663.42 1,231.50
2022-2023 2021-2022
(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
2.47 2.24
0.87 0.65
Total 3.33 2.89
12M FY22-23 12M FY21-22
77117 114.40
15,15,000.00 15,15,000.00
15,15,000.00 15,15,000.00
50.90 7.55
15,15,000.00 15,15,000,00
50.90 7.554




Uheinbuid Maledlal Teclmuluyles Pol. Lid.

(Erstwhile Protochem Industries Private Limited)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2023

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

NOTE : 29
Reconciliation of tax expense 2022-23 2021-22

Current Income Tax
The income tax expense consists of the followings:

Particulars

Current Income Tax 122.21 10,63
Deferred Tax Expense (132.89) (12.92)
Short/(Excess) provision of Income Tax of earlier years (net) (1.91)

Tax expense for the year (12.58) (2.28)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax Rate

Profit before income tax expense 758.58 112.10
Indian statutory income tax rate (MAT) 15.80% 15.60%
Expected Income Tax expenses 118.34 17.19
'art A

Tax effect of amounts which are not deduclible (allowable) in calculating taxable income:

Additlonal allawanaar/dnduation 387 4758
Transition gain - -
MAT credit entitlement - -

Others - (11.61)
Short/Excess Mrovigion for earlier years (1.81) -
Current Tax (A) 120.30 10.63
Part B
Deferred Tax Effect at the rate of: 26% 26%
Depreciation (5.07) 3.72
Less:
Gratuity 0.85 1.91
MAT Credit (122.21) (10.63)
Other Deferred tax Asset -
Provision for Doubtful Debts (6.46) (7.92)
Deferred Tax (B) (132.89) (12.92)

Tax Expense (A+B) (12.59) (2.29)




Chembond Material Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
(Erstwhile Protochem Industries Private Limited)
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2023

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

NOTE : 30

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)

Particulars

2022-2023

2021-2022

(i) Contingent liabilities

(a) Liabilities disputed - appeals filed with respect to:
Income Tax (TDS})
Sales Tax
Gujarat Value Added tax

(i) Counter Guarantees given by Company for Bank Guamatees
issued

(i) Capital Commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

53.82

0.40

Total

35.356

54.22

NOTE : 31
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at
March 31, 2023

Fair value through
profit or loss

Fair value through
other
comprehensive

Amortised cost

income
Financial assets
Investments
Mutual Funds - quoted - - -
Loans to employees / others - - 40.25
Deposits Account - Pledged with Government Authorities - - 1.31
Security deposits - - 3.27
Trade receivables - - 3423.76
Cash and cash equivalents - - 103.58
Bank balances other than above - - 104.20
- - 3676.38]
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 1190.68
Trade payables - - 2883.06
Other financial liabilities - - 1.28
- - 4075.02
As at

March 31, 2022

Fair value through
profit or loss

Fair value through
other
comprehensive
income

Amortised cost

Financial assets
Investments
Mutual Funds - quoted
Loans to employees / others
Deposits Account - Pledged with Government Authorities
Security deposits
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than above

LI S B

R R B I Y

20.87
1.31
1.66

2,820.89
226.52
11472

3,785.98

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

1,368.02
3,061.63
4.88

4,434,652

The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities carried as amortised cost approximates their fair value.

NOTL . 32
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's capital management objectives are:
- to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concemn; and

- to provide an adeauate return to sharehalders through aptimisatinn of dehts and equity halance
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of
the financial statements. The Company's objective for capital management is to maintain an optimum overall financial structure.

(i) Debt equity ratio

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Debt (includes non-current, current ba alurities o 1,190.68 1,368.02
Less : cash and cash equivalents 103.58 226.52
Net debt . 1.087.10 1,141.49
& C(HARTERED
Total equity = ACCOUNTANTS 969.37 189.96
Net debt to total equity ratio i 112.1% 600.9%




NOTE @ 5)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk manaaement
Tliz Company's aclivilies expuse it Credil sk, hyuldily sk and market rsk.

i. Risk management haimewuork

Risk Management is an integral part of the Company's plans and operations. The Company's board of dircctors has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Company risk management framework. | he board ot directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company

risk management policies.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit

committee.

ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities, cash and cash equivalents, mutual funds, bonds etc.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables

Credit risk is the risk of possible default by the counter party resulting in a financial loss.

The Company manages credit risk through various internal policies and procedures selforlh for cffeclive control over credit exposure. These are managed
by way of rofting varioun aradit approvals, evlintinn of finnneint eonditinn hefare aupply trema, antting eradit limits, industy trends, ageing analysis ai
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, management believes that sufficient provision is made for credit risk
wherever credit is extended to customers.

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus
funds are made in mainly in mutual funds with good returns and with high credit ratings assigned by International and domestic credit ratings agencies.

Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired.

iii. Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by
ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without

incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation.

iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as

interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates ). Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables
and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk
and the market value of its investments. Thus, the Company’s exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue
generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.

a) Currency risk
The Compnay is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales, purchase, and other expenses are

denominated and the functional currency of the Company. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees (INR).

Exposure to currency risk

Foreign Currency Exposures at the year end not hedged by derivative instruments: Amount in Lakhs

As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
Foreign Currency Indian Currency Foreign Currency indian Currency
US Dollars ( USD) Sell (0.04) (3.14) 0.09 6.73
Swiss Franc (CHF) Sell 0.03 3.06 - -

b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Investment committee manages and constantly reviews the interest rate movements in the market. This risk is mitigated by the Company by investing the
funds in varioustenors depending on the liquidity needs of the Company. The Company's exposures to interest rate risk is not significant.

u3 CHARTERED &
\= AccounTants 3 )




NULE; 44
FMPI NYFF RENFFIT P| ANS
Deflned contributlon plan

Contributions are made to Employee Provident Fund (RPF), Fmplayees State Insiranee Scheme (ESIC) and other Funds which
LUVELS dil tequidt BHHPIUYRES. BUH the employees ana the Lombany make oredetermined cantnbuhons to the Provident Fund and
ESHLTHB EHBIHRINARS are nnrmalllf nasa An 4 rarain parraniagn nt tho emplayna’e calone dAmeunt reeegniged ae onpanoo in
rnrpnr‘t nf tharn dafinnd nantributian "1|nr|n| n"nmann n Mo §2 07| plikg (r\p|-,-i|u| YRED M 10,97 H‘Mw]‘

T Yrar endpd
March 31, 2023

Year porded
March 31. 2022

Contribution to Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund, Others
Contribution to ESIC and Employees Deposit Linked Insurance (EDL1)
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund

58.83
1.07
0,07

52,43
1.37
0.07

Defined benefit plan
(A} Deflned Beneflt Plan

The Company's obligation towards the Gratuity Fund is a Defined Benefit Plan. Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this

respect, details of Acturial Valuation are as follows:

Gratuity Gratuity
Pardculars {Fundod) = (F"';d1—l—°:n
S on -Mar-
As on 31-Mar-2023 2022
l1.Change in Defined Benefit Oblig
Opening defined benefit obligation 90.15 85.61
Amount recognised in profit and loss - -
Current service cost 19.24 13.93
Interest cost 6,39 5.75
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial loss / {gain) arising from:
Retumn on Plan Assets - =
Financial assiimptinns (1 14) {3.98)
Experience adjustment (5.71) (7.80)
Other - -
Benefils paid {11.92) {3.36)
Clasing defined benefit obligation 84.02 80.15
Il} Change in fair value of assets :
Opening fair value of plan assets 78.01 66.12
Amount recognised in profit and loss
Interest income 5.63 4.44
Amuount recognised in other comprehensive income
Acluarial gain / (loss)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (1.44) {2.12)
Equitable fund transfer in - -
Other
Contributions by employer 14.98 12.93
Benefils paid (11.92) (3.36)
Clasing fair value of plan assets 85.16 78.01
Agtual return on Plan Assets 4.09 232
Plan assets comprise the following
Unquoted Unquoted
Insurance fund (100%) 85,16 78.01
IV} Principal acturial assumptions used
Rate of Interest (%) 7.50 7.10
Withdrawal rate (%) 1,00 1.00
Salary escalation rate (%} 7.50 7.50
V) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet As at 31st March, As at 31st
2023 March, 2022
Presenl value of obligations as at year end 94.02 90.15
Fair walna nf pian areate ae At yoor and 0G.16 ¥0.01
Net (asset) / liability recognised as at year end 8.86 12.14
Recognised under :
Current liability 8,86 12.14
Non current fighility = ]
B.08 12:14

Vit) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
LUIISLANL, WULH HelVE JETELLEU LY UETHIBY BEITEHL BUNYLHLHN BY e SHISUNE SHEWH Balow,

Asal 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Mgt pasi Lstreass increase Ueerease
Miscaunl rate (1% movemsnt) - Gratuity B84.85 | 104.06 (E0.E5)[ 101.56
Fulure salzry growth (1% mevement) - Gratull{ 104.81 | 84.80 101.40 | 80.61

The above sensitivity analyses have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and
assuning thuro o nw ullicr dhanyges in el conding ul e sepuiling dale, i praclive, yeieially [dues nuL oo, vitsn
we change one variable, it affects to others. In calculating the sensitivity, project unit credit method at the end of the reporting

(wii)

_Expected fufure cash flows

The expected maturity analysis Is as follows :

For year ended [For year ended

31.3.2023

31.3.2022

Expected benafits for year 10.23

3.98

Expected benefits for year 2 4.52

7.03

Expectad benefits far year 3 630

4.40

Expocted benefits for vear 4 4,49

1117

3.67

Expacted bensfits for year & 1.30
|Expected henefits for year 6 and above 36.98

24,08

135

The Company normally acquires offices and warehouses under non-cancellable
operational leases. Minimum lease payments outstanding at year end in respect of
these asets are as under:

Due within one year

Due later than one year and not later than five years

Due later than five years

Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Tatal Mimimum Lease|Total Minimum| Total M
Payment Quistanding|Lease  Payment]Lease Payment
as on 31/03/2023 o ing as on|O fing as on
310372022 31/03/2021
(Rs. In [akhs) (Rs: In lakns} (Rs. In iakhs)
43.16 21.29 6.55
39.82 13.24 9.68




NOTE:

36

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Srne.
L}
]

Datails of Related parties and the naturs of
Major Haadin

Holding Company

relationshi
[Name of reiated party
Chembond Chemicals Limited

Key Managemunt Personpe

Samear V. Shah

Flaihdl W il

___|Mahendra Ghelani

arlsh Maheshwari

Raj Kamal Gupta

Jaywant Tawede

Gubhash Iolhe

1

Relalives of Key

Sameer Shah HUF.Shilpa Shah, Padma Shah,Raunan ShahMallika Shah Amnta Shah

hManagement Persarine!

Shashank (Amnta Husbard) Alpana Shah,Jyat Mehta, Nirmat Vinod Shah HUF Mamila Shah,

Rahil Shah Kshitijz Shal MK, Ghelani (H.U.F.) . Mina Ghelani, Kalyan]i Ghelsni Kanta Ghelani,

Jayant | Madhusudan Rekha | Sudha

hrs Latta Harish Mahestwan Mr Laxmichand Maheswan Mrs Lilavati Laxmichand Maheshwarn,

e Jinen Mateshwar, Mr Pransy Mahesharo, Mrs. Un Jinen Maheshwari Sharal Silesh,

Bhartl, Minal, Nandita, Lina

Anjall Gupts Vishws Nalh Gupts Lesls Gupta, Athinay Gupla Adill Gupts.Juhi Supta Raizada,

Amal Ralzads Kamal Gupta

Jyutsna Javwant Tawade Late Keshavrao Vishram Tawade Lale Seetabal Keshavrag Tewads, |

Sangram Jaywanl Tawade,Jul Jaywant Tawade. Yashwanl Keshavrao Tawsts

Mrs Sushma GhorpadeMrs Rafaxmi Rane
Sutekhs Kolhe, Pandhannath Kolhe Shakuntala Kalhe. Deepak Kothe Sneha Kolhe,

Priyanka Chaudhar, Kamlskar Chaudhar Muralidhar Kolhe Pushpa Rade

\'3]

Company in which directors have significant

influence

Chembond Watar Technologies Limited
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Lid.

Chembond Biosciences Lid

S and N Venlures Pyl Lid,

Visan Haldinas Pyl Lid.

Chembond Disthibution Lid.

Chembond Calvalis Indusirial Hyaiene Systems Lid.

Finor Piplal Chemicals Limited

CCL Optoelectionies Pyt Lid

Chembond Polymers and Material Lid

Phiroze Sethns Pyl Lid.

Gramos Chemicals lndig Pyt Lid,

Qriano Clean Enemy Prvste Limited

Vanety Investments Private Limiled

India Reality Excelience Fund | LLP

Huber Indie Private Limited

Avrean Chemicals India Private Limited

Transaction with Related Parties are as follows:

Year ended 31st March, 202
Companies in
Sr. . Holding Joint Venture Key Management | which directors
No. Rarticulars| company Partner Person (Ig(MP) have significant LCEES
influence
1 | Purchase 635.72 - - B82.13 1,517.85
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 635.72 635.72
Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd 13.24 13.24
Chembond Biosciences Limited 553 553
Chembond Polymers And Materiais Ltd 047 047
Chembond Water Technologies Ltd 569 569
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd 034 0.34
Chembond Distribution Ltd 75.03 7503
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 44303 44303
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 338.81 338.81
CCL Optoeleclronics Pvt. Ltd =
2 | Sale of Finished Goods 212.23 - - 337.65 549.88
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 212.23 21223
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd 548 548
Chembond Biosciences Limited 116.66 116 66
Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd 0.22 0.22
Chembond Water Techniologies Ltd 4390 43.90
Chembond Polymers And Materials Ltd 943 943
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 89.55 89.55
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 7241 72.41
3 | Expenses Rent 26.36 = - 9.00 35.36
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 26.36 26.36
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 7.80 7.80
Chembond Wator Technologics Ltd 1.20 1.20
4 | Reimbursement of Telephone exo, = * - N8 3R
Phirnte Sathna Rriviatn | imitnd 0.00 org
Lramos Chemicals India Prvate Limited 010 010
5 | Reimbursement of Salary Cost - - - 137.74 137.74
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 102.83 102.83
Gramos Chemicals India Piivale Limited 3492 34.92
B | Reimbursement of Expenses - . - 2.72 272
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 272 272
7 | Travelling expenses - = - - -
Phittize Qething Privare | imiten
Ganiius UIIHILS TUld FIYdLE LITIRG .
8 | Staff Welfare expenses B 0.20 0.28
Phirnze Sethna Private | imited a8 Q.20
8 | Sub Contracting Charges 402.00 E 244.41 646.41
Chemhond Chemirals | td an? nn 102.00
Ciramaa Chemicals India Private Limited 242 66 242,66
Chemhand Rinsriancas | imitan 1.7C 170
10 | Charge aut Charges - - 85.49 85.49
Flihuze elinid Ftlvaie Linied 4544 4544
11 | Purchase of Fixed Assets - - - n24 024
Blituze Seutitd FHvdle LIty 124 024
12 | Sale of Fixed Assets - - - 0.84 0.84
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 056 056
Cliuhibong Bissoienses Limiea 028 028
14 | Koyalty - - 3243 32,43
U wrd M Venlures Pyl L, 3243 3443
14 | Income recovered = - - - -
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited -
15 | Loan Interest Paid 115.62 - - - 115.62
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 11562 115.62
Sameer V. Shah -
16 | Loan Repayment - = 138.00
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 138,00
IT [ Blicelus Blwiny Tees vy - BRI
Mahendra K Ghelani 030 0.30
Jaywant Tawade 030 0.30
Raj Kamal Gupta 0.30 0.30
18 | Commission 591 - 5.91
Subhash Koihe 591 591
18 | Consulting fees 65,44 65.44
CCL Oploelectronics Pvt. Ltd -
Subhash Kolhe 48,28 48.28
Jaywant Tawade 17.16 1716




Year ended 31st March, 2022

Sr.

Holding

Joint Venture

Key Management

Companies in
which directors

No. Rartichlags company Partner Person (KMP) have significant figkal
influence

1 | Purchase 347.70 - - 2,524.53 2,872.23
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 347.70 347.70
Finor Piplaj Chemicais Ltd 11.17 11.17
Chembond Biosciences Limited 50.37 50.37
Chembond Polymers And Materials Ltd. 0.20 0.20
Chembond Water Technologies Ltd 2.80 2.80
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd 0.11 0.11
Chembond Distribution Ltd. 78.55 78.55
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 327.04 327.04
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 2,054.23 2,054.23

CCL Optoelectronics Pvt. Ltd 0.06 0.06

2 | Sale of Finished Goods 325.29 - - 381.21 706.51
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 325.29 325.29
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd 3.99 3.99
Chembond Distribution Ltd. 7.88 7.88

CCL Optoelectronics Pvt, Ltd 0.05 0.05
Chembond Biosciences Limited 104.21 104.21
Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd 0.05 0.05
Chembond Water Technologies Ltd 92.13 92.13
Chembond Polymers And Materials Ltd. 3.22 3.22
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 89.38 89.38
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 80.30 80.30

3 | Expenses Rent 5.20 - - 3.50 8.70
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 5.20 5.20
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 1.28 1.28
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 1.32 1.32
Chembond Water Technologies Ltd 0.90 0.90

4 | Reimbursement of Telephone exp. - - - 0.19 0.19
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 0.18 0.18
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 0.01 0.01

5 | Reimbursement of Salary Cost 122.02 - - 138.20 260.22
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 122.02 122.02
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 112.28 112.28
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 25.92 25.92

6 | Travelling expenses - - - 0.33 0.33
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 0.17 0.17
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 0.17 0.17

7 | Staff Welfare expenses - - - 0.11 0.11
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 0.1 0.1

8 | Sub Contracting Charges 397.22 - - - 397.22
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 397.22 397.22

9 | Royalty - - - 27.56 27.56
S and N Ventures Pvt. Ltd. 27.56 27.56

10 | Income recovered - - - 1.05 1.05
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 1.05 1.05

11 | Loan Interest Paid 115.92 - 0.82 - 116.74
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 115.92 115.92
Sameer V. Shah 0.82 0.82

12 | Director Sitting Fees - - 0.90 - 0.90
Mahendra K Ghelani 0.30 0.30
Jaywant Tawade 0.30 0.30

Raj Kamal Gupta 0.30 0.30

13 | Commission - - 3.18 - 3.18
Subhash Kolhe 3.18 3.18

14 | Consulting fees - - 64.31 0.49 64.80
CCL Optoelectronics Pvt. Ltd 0.49 0.49
Subhash Kolhe 44.71 44.71
Jaywant Tawade 19.60 19.60




Balances Receivable from Related Parties are as Follows:

As at March 31, 2023

Companies in

Sr. Particulars Holding Joint Venture Key Management | which directors Tatal
Nu. company Partner Person (KMP) have significant
influence
1 | Trade Receivables/Other receivable - - - 347.49 347.49
Chembond Chemicals | td (Halding Co )
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd 0.89 0.89
Chembond Distribution Ltd. =
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited - -
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited -
CCL Optoelectronics Pvi. Ltd -
Finor Piplnj Chemicals | 0.06 0.06
Chembnnd Palymers And Materials | trd 0.01 0.04
Chembond Biosciences Limited 342.51 342.51
Chambond Water Technologies Lid 3.0 J3.99
2 | Finance (Equity Contribution) 151.50 151.50
Chembond Chemicals LId (Holding Co.) 151.50 151.50
TOTAL 151.50 - - 347.49 498.99
As at March 31, 2022
Companles [n
Sr. i Holding Joint Venture Key Management | which directors
No. FRFcaEs company Partner Person (KMP}) have significant okl
influence
1 | Trade Receivables/Other receivable 24.43 - - 558.65 583.08
Chembond Chemicals Ltd (Holding Co.) 24.43 24.43
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd 0.43 0.43
Chembond Distribution Ltd. 2.32 2.32
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 197.76 197.76
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 151.38 151.38
CCL Optoelectronics Pvt. Ltd 0.06 0.06
Chembond Biosciences Limited 206.69 206.69
2 | Finance (Equity Contribution) 151.50 151.50
Chembond Chemicals Ltd (Holding Co.) 151.50 151.50
TOTAL 175.93 - - 558.65 734.58
Balances Payable to Related Parties are as Follows:
As at March 31, 2023
Companies in
Sr. Particulars Holding Joint Venture Key Management | which directors Total
No. company Partner Person (KMP) have significant
influence
1 | Trade Payables/Other Payables 877.29 - 0.26 283.23 1,160.78
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 877.29 877.29
Chembond Distribution Ltd. -
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 91.20 91.20
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd 0.40 0.40
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 18R 34 18A 34
Chembond Water Technologies Ltd 0.56 0.56
Finor Piplaj Chemicals Ltd 3.55 3.55
Chembond Biosciences Limited 117 117
Mahendra K Ghelani -
Jaywant Tawade -
Subhash Kolhe 0.26 0.26
2 | Loans 1,150.00 - - - 1,150.00
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 1,150.00 1,150.00
TOTAL 2,027.29 - 0.26 283.23 2,310.78
As at March 31, 2022
Companies in
Sr. Particulars Holding Joint Venture Key Management | which directors Total
No. company Partner Person (KMP) have significant
influence
1 | Trade Payables/Other Payahles 968.51 - 5.46 649.57 1,623.53
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 968.51 968.51
Chembond Distribution Ltd. 0.18 0.18
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 638.01 638.01
Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited 2.54
Chembond Water Technologies Ltd 1.13 1.13
Chembond Biosciences Limited 7.71 7.71
Mahendra K Ghelani 0.26 0.26
Jaywant Tawade 1.17 1.17
Subhash Kolhe 7%:1 up ’ﬁ,\ 4.02 4.02
2 | Loans /A TEN\ 1,288.00 - - - ===  1,288.00
Chembond Chemicals g .° ... =\ 1,288.00 7 WWTED & Ny ,288.00
TOTAL [= oAIERED T 2,256.51 - 5.46 11.53
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{a) Cunienl Raliy

| 2022-2023] 2021-2022]

Current Assets(A) 4,961.93 4,454.63
Current Liabilties(B) 4,517.79 4,669.69
Current Ratio{ A/B) 1.10 0.95
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio

Tulal Buiiuvwhiys(4) 1,140.44 1,488.02
Total Shareholders' Equity(B) 949 37 189 964
Uubl-Eyuly Raliv{ A/B) 1.23 7.20
Increase in equity due to increase in piufil,

(c)_Nebt Service Coverage Ratio

EBITDA(A) 918.16 268.37
Interest on Loan+Loan repayment in a year(B) 19,62 16,14
Nebt Servire nverage Ratio{ A/B) 7.94 2.30
Increase in EBITDA due to increase in operating profits

(d)_Return nn_Feuity Ratia

Net Profit(A) 7.7 114,40
Average Shareholders Euity(B) 579.67 127.94
Return on Equity Ratio{ A/B) 1.33 0.89
Increase in profits

{e).Inventory turnover ratio

Cost of goods Sold(A) 9,617.31 7,272.64
Average Inventory(B) 1,188.44 1,056.80
Inventory turnover Ratio( A/B) 8.09 6.88

Increase in cost of goods sold due to increase in sales & significant raw

material price inflation.

(f) Trade_receivables turnover ratio

Net sales(A) 13,400.88 9,838.81
Average Accounts receivable(B) 3,122.32 2,255.76
Trade receivable turnover Ratio{ A/B) 4.29 4.36

(g) Trade Payables_ turnover ratio

Net sales(A) 13,400.88 9,838.81
Average trade payable(B) 2,972.34 2,392.99
Trade Payables turnover Ratio( A/B) 4.51 4.11

{h) Net Capital turnover talio

Nel aalea(A) 13,400.88 9,838.81
Net assets(B) 805.83 159.32
Mel Capital turnover Ratio( A/B) 18.63 61.76

Inaruasv in vales & receivable

(i) Net Profit ratio

Net Profit(A) 7717 14.40
Net Sales(B) 13,400.88 9,838.81
Net Profit Ratio( A/B) 6% 1%
Increase in sales & Net profit

(jLReturn_on Capital employed

EBIT{A) 807.90 239.29
YRAFONGIHOPE Wtjhtity ! Leng tarm Liamiibinaild) WY MY g
Kelurn un Lapilal empluyed{ A/H} U.42 1.20
(k) Return on Investment

Net Profit(A) 77117 14,40
Net assets(B) 805.83 159.32
Return on Inyestment(-A/B) - 0.96 0.72
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NOTE : 38
Ageing Schedule for Trade receivables

Ageing for trade receivables_outstanding as_on 31st Mar'23 is as follows:
Ammunt in B lakhs

Outstanding for fellowing periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 6 months - 1year|1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years [Total
months

i} Undisputed trade receivables =
considered good 1,977.31 987.12 190.00 23159 12459 53.80 3.564.43
ii) Undisputed trade receivables -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

i) undisputed trade receivables -
credit impaired

iv) Disputed trade receivables =
considered good

v} Disputed trade receivables -
which have significant increase in
credit risk
vi) Disputed trade receivables -

credit impaired
Less : Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (140.67)
Trade receivables 342375

Ageing for trade receivables outstanding as_on 31st Mar'22 is as follows :
Amount in Re lalihs

P Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
AINCUSES Not Due Less than 6 6 months - 1year|1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years |Total

months

i) Undisputed trade receivables -
considered good 1.554.96 937.48 181,72 188.36 3140 42.81 2,936.73

i) Undisputed trade receivables -

which have significant increase in
jii) undisputed trade receivables -

credit impaired
iv) Disputed trade receivables -
considered good
v) Disputed trade receivables -

which have significant increase in

vi) Disputed trade receivables -

credit impaired =
Less : Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (115.84)
Trade receivables 2,820.89
NOTE : 39

Ageing Schedule for Trade Payables

Ageing for trade Payables oulstanding as_.on 31st Mar'23 is as_follows
Amaount In fsfakhs

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymenl
Not Due Less than1yr |1-2yrs 2-3yrs More than 3 yrs. |Total
1) MSME 7.65 139.12 - - = 21078
) Others 1,256.37 89050 20815 .00 (11.66) 2.349.34
lll) Disputed dues - MSME X
1V) Disputed dues - Others a
Accrued expenses 32294
Net trade payables 2.883.06

Ageing for_trade Payables outstanding as on_31st Mar'22 is_as _follows :
Ameunt in Rs iakhs

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less thanlyr [1-2yrs 2-3 yrs More than 3 yrs. |Total
1} MSME 214,69 126.79 - - - 341.48
Il) Others 1.260.99 1.062.26 24098 (13.87) 187 2.552.22
Ill) Disputed dues - MSME =
IV) Disputed dues - Others =
Accrued expenses 167.93

Net trade payables 3,061.63

NOTE : 40
ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE Il TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

i The Company does nothae any benami property held in its name, No proceedings have been inititated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property
under the Benami Transactions(Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

i The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or any government authority

iii The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017
iv Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

| The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall :
(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

1l The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)

that the Company shall :
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner whatsnavar hy nr an hehalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Benoficiarios) ar

(b) pravide any guarantee, security ar the like on behalf of the ultimate benseficiaries____

v There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessm i Act, 1961 (such as search or survey), that has not been

recorded in the books of account,

vi The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency durl

= ACCOUNTANTS =

egl'FlEred with Rcuistrf‘h’}?ﬂmpnnlss beyond the statutory period

/&OMBN{L 4 §

vii The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to b




NOTE : 41

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is engaged in Metal Treament chemicals, specialty chemicals, Lubricants, MRO, Industrial Enzymes & Probiotics, which in the context of IND
AS 108- Operating segment specifed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 is considered as a single business segment of the company.

NOTE : 42
MERGER OF CHEMBOND POLYMERS & MATERIALS LIMITED WITH CHEMBOND MATERIAL TECHNOLOGIES PVT. LTD.
During the current quarter, Chembond Material Technologies Private Limited and Chembond Polymers and Materials Limited have entered into a proposed

NOTE : 43
FIRE IN TARAPUR PLANT
The Company's claim of Rs, 95 lakhs for the inventory damage in the fire incident which occurred in April 2022 has been settled by the insurance company

at Rs. 34.28lakhs. The Claim against property, plant and equipment is under review.

NOTE : 44
Previous year figures have been regrouped, reallocated and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year classification and

presentation .

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
For M/s Kastury & Talati Chembond Material Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
Chartered Accountants CIN:U24200MH2000PTC125231
Firm Rggjstration Number : 104908W
%—- a-—E“"‘;‘s.
.\:"f. Cy
B < ON
Dhiren P Talati Sameer V. Shah \\l Nirmal V= Shah
Partner Director ey ;' Director
Membership No: 41867 DIN:00105721 § DIN: 00083853
Place : Navi Mumbai. Place : Navi Mumbai. -~ ; Tr;'{- ace : Navi Mumbai.
Date: 13th May 2023 Date: 13th May 2023 JONKSAL Date: 13th May 2023
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